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audijt Allowances; CTF learned for the first time that Marriott haS been secretly receiving and
retaining exclusively for itself approximately 70% of the A/V Fees that C'Tl'F.had been paying
Molloy under the M-olloy Agreements, Inan é-mail dgted f-‘ei)mmy 13, 2002, Marriott finally
responded to CTF's long-standing ix;fqnnation rcqﬁests con@ming the Molloy Agiee;nents by
revealing, for the first time, that of thc h 1;032,000 CTF had paid to Molloy for the A/V Sez;viccs
in 2000, Molloy actually only mﬁned apprdximately 30% of the A/V Fee and Marriott secrétly _
pockcted the balance, or by Marriott's later admxssxon, the astomshmg sum of $706 809. The
extraordinary result is that to fund these undnsclosed klckbacks from Molloy to Marriott, CTF
was unknowmgly paying Molloy nearly 300% of its actual invoice expenses.

123.  Plainly, if CTF had been informed of this massive mark-up in Molloy's

fees solely to finance a kickback scheme to Maxriott; CTF would never have agreed to the
arrangement. Marriott knew that CTF did not have this information, which was peculiarly jn
Marriott and Molloy‘ﬁ ﬁossession. |

} 124, In 511 of its in_any presentations and discussions concerning MV P, Marriott
pcvef disclosed this highly mate:ial ferm of it§ secret arrangement with Molloy. By wilfully '
withholding this info'rmation,'Marﬁott is gmlty of breach of fiduciary duty, fraudulent conéeal-’
ment, and is also in breach of its cxphcxt dnsclosure obhgauons under the 1999 Agreement, both
1o disclose the maimal terms of all existing programs as of Apnl 1999, and to continue disclos-
ing such terms on an ongoing basis. (_& supra 1 58 ) .

" 125. The kickbacks Marriott received from Molloy fall squarely within t.hc»

1999 Agreement's definition of Allowances - as “MMMMM_@Q
any nature whatsoever that are provided to'Martiott (including any aﬁﬁiate) m_t:gnnﬁggnm '
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p_l;[(_:b ase or other contractual arrangement between Marriott and a third gm in connection with
any Hotel(s} " As such, they were, and are, subject to the Allowance Cap and the disclosure |

rules estabhshed under the 1999 Agreemcnt.

126. By retaining more than $706,000 in Molloy kickbacks in 2000 alone,

Marriott eecreﬂy exceeded the Allowance Cap by ﬁearly 300% -- excluding the other Allowances
.Maxrio& has kept as its purported entitlement under the Cap. Marriott's improper retention of the
Molloy kickbacks directly violated the 1999 Agreement. - - |

| 127. Marriott's ﬁ'auduleni concealment of the Molloy kickbacks also violated
the specific disclosure requirements in the Agreements. Concealin.g the existence of the Molloy
kiekbacks, Marriott falsely represented in the annual certifications submitted pursuant to the -
1999 Agreement (see supra § 5 1) that all of'its pmgmm charges and fecs under the 1999
Agreement were proper. Until CTF speclﬁcally requested the details of Mamott' s payments to
Molloy, Marriott never revealed its acmal retentlon of the Molloy kickbacks.

128.  CTF wrote to Mamott on March 5, 2002 to express its surprise at the
revelation of undlsc]osed kickbacks ﬁom Molloy and to demand that Marriott: (1) provide a full
accounting of all A/V Fees that hade been paid to or reta.med'by Man'iott during fiscal years
19§9, 2000, and 2001; (2)‘ disgorge all euch retained fees; and (3) cease and desist from further

retention of any portion of the A/V Fee.

129.  Inresponse, on March 15, 2002, Marriott baldly refused 0 comply,

althoughMamottadm:ttedthatnneverdlglggedggglfMn gsﬁg ggZ ggﬁhf Q

Molloy. Marriott erroneously — and arrogantly — claimed that "[n]othing in the [1 999] Agree-

Ament 6bligates Marriott to disclose the amount of profit" it was earning from Molloy, which was
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information that "Marriott had no iﬁdepe’ndent obligatioh to volunteer.”

130. Itis prccxscly this cat-and~mouse ammde tha.‘c Mamott has taken toward lts
fiduciary dxsclosnre obligations that compels CTF to petition the Court for the injunctive and |
declaratory relief requested herein.

131. On March 28, 2002, CTf issued a notice of default to Marriott based on its _
fraudulent collection and continued retention of the Molloy kickbacks and its failure to submit to

an audit. In a last ditch effort to tranquilize CTF and to preempt its inevitable resort to this Court

for legal and equitable relief, Marriott tendered a check to CTF on April 8, 2002 in the amount of o

$2,027,000, representing the purported total of the Molloy kickbacks retained by Marriott both

the Hotels and the HPI Portfolio. Thus Marriott proposed to return to CTF $1,714,323 in

kickbacks attributable to the Hotels. Marriott coupled the check with a petition for arbitrati‘oﬁ
before the American Arbitration Association, event though CTF never agreed to arbitrate its
disputes with Marriott. To the w@, the Agreements both specifically reaffirm CTF‘s right to
a judicial forum. - | |
Marriott Refuses to Cooperate with CTF's Audit of Allowances

132. * On February 6, 2002, CTF notified Marriott that it was exercising its right
to revxcw, inspect and aud:t Marriott’s records concerning Allowances and transactions entered
into on behalf of CTF, as exphc:tly granted under the Agreements. Marnott has vigorously

resisted complymg with this audit request, ﬁrst by failing for several weeks to respond atall,

- then by clmmmg, on March 4 2002, without any specificity, that the request was burdensome

and a mere "fishing expedition." After an intoductory meeting, a second meeting to discuss the
audit was at long last scheduled (roughly six weeks after the initial demand). Marriott threatened
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to cancel the meeting on th.e pretense that‘Marridtt would not ‘prc;ceed unles§ CTF agreed to enter
.'mto a new confidentiality agrcemeﬁt, even though s.uc'h"a condition is novv;herc in the Manage- |
ment Agreeme'nt's unconditional a;xdit and inspection provisions.

133.  CTF objected to Marriott's effort to thwart the audit by imposing a new |
confidentiality condition. However, when it became clear (as in CTF's Avendra request) that
Marriott would not réniove the artificjal roadblock it had erected to the commencement of the
audit unless CTF acquiesced, it did so under protest to Marriott's condition.

134.  Most reccﬁtly, Marriott has refused to proceed with the audit unless and
until CTF revises its audit request to "narrow" the scope to conform to the limited scope that |
Marriott deems "sufficient and adequate.” Of cox;réc, under the unequivocal terms of the
Management Agreement, the audit right belongs to CTF and the determination of what docu- *
ments are "sufficient and adequate” to complete the audit is a matter comrnitted td VCTF and its |
audltors sole discretion. Nonetheless, to advance the audit and accommodate Marriott's
supposed concerns, CTF was prepared to attempt to modify the audit request but first needed
Marriott's specific feedback on the initial F ebruary 6, 2002 audxt request. Marriott has categori-
cally refused to provide any specific rcsponse, referencing Mamott’s wholly inadequate and
nonspecific March 4, 2002 response which did not substantively address the items on the auﬂit '-
request, much less clearly identify the.pa'rtic.:ular documents Marriott would or would not
produce. By insisting on a "revised list" as the basis foxj the audit to proceed, and yét refusing to
provide the feedback necessary to revise that list, Marriott continues to obstruct CTF's cxercilse.
of its audit rights. ..

135.  Asaresult of Marriott’s__ cqntinued stonc,wallipg and gamesmanship in -
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vmlanon of its fiduciary and contractual duties, CTF has st1H not received any substantive

response to its audlt request, much less any of the underlymg information requested in that

' request.

136.  CTF therefore seeks the Court's assistance in enforcing its audit rights

under the Agreements. ;
(the meﬂ :
(Aga.inst the Marriott Defcndants)

137. CTF, rcpeats and realleges each and every allegatxon contamed in .
paragraphs 110 136 as if fully set forth herein. ' L ‘ "

138.  The Management Agreement constitutes a binding and enférc&ble
contract between CTF and RHOC. | o |

139, Because at all relevant times hereto RHOC acted as the agent of Marriott,
under its complete domination, control and direcﬁon, Marriott assumed the_bbligations éf RHOC

under the Managanent Agreement caused RHOC's material breaches of the Management

~ Agreement, and is therefore _)omtly and sevcra.[ly liable for such breaches.

140. CTF has duly performed all conditions, covenants and promises required
to be performcd by it under the Management Agreement. ' l

141.  In clear and material breach of their obhganons under the Management

Agreement, the Marriott Defendants have, m g,hg
a improperly delegated core agency purchasing duties to Avcn&m without CTF's

consent;
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imposed, or threatened to impose, improper charges and fees on the Hotels in
vxolanon of the Management Agreement;

diverted money that should have been paid to CTF by improper payment of

irﬁpmper_ fees and charges to Marriott's affiliates, including Avendra;

diverted money due to CTF by improperly soliciting and retaining kickbacks from -

Molloy and by improperly soliciting and applying "Restricted Allowances";

engaged in transactions for goods and services on behalf of the Hotels with

Marriott's affiliates, including Avendra, withq_ut CTF's consent, and without

ensuring the competitiveness of such transactions;

refused to provide a prdper accounting of fees, charges and Allowances (including

Sponsoréhip Funds) imposed or collected by-Marriott and its affiliates to the
Hotels;

failed to maintain accurate and complete books, records and financial stétements

for the Hotels; and

failed to provide access to books, records and material agreements and to submit .

to an audit despite repeated demands by CTF.

142. CTF has provided the Marriott Defendants written notice of the breaches

identified above, which constitute events of default under the Management Agrccment, and the
Marriott Defendants have failed to cure said events of default within the penods speclﬂed by the

Managemcnt Agreement.

143.  CTF has suffered and w111 continue to suffer damages asa dxrect result of

Dcfendams' breaches of their obhganons under the Management Agreement.
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COUNTII
Breach of Contract

(the 1999 Agreement)
{(Against the Marriott Defendants)

144,  CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 to 143 as if .fullly set forth herein. '

145. The 1999 Agreement constitutes a binding and enforceable contract
between CTF and the Marriott Defendants. o

'146.  CTF has duly performed all conditions, covenants and promises required
tc; be performed by it under the 1999 Agreement. . | .

| 147. In matérial and willful breach of their obligations under the 1999

Agreement, the Marriott Dgfeﬁdants have, inter alia:

a, improperly delegated core agency purchasing duties to Avendra without CTF's _
consent;

o b. imposed, or threztened to impose, improper fees, charges, costs and/or allocations
on the Hotels, including improper procureri_aent fees;

c. Vdivcncd money that should have been paid to CTF by improper payment of
improper fees and ché;ggs to themselves and their affiliates and by soliciting and |
accepting secret kickbacks from Molloy; |

d. engaged in transactions for goods and services on behalf of the Hotels with
affiliates, without obtaining CTF's consent, and without ensuring the competitive-.
ness of such tran'sactior_xs; |

e. failed to provide CTF with disclosure of all material terms of Marriott's programs,
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such as the receipt of kickbacks from Molloy, Marriott's solicitation and use of

Unrestricted Allowances and Sponsorship Funds or the extent of benefits Marriott

dérives from Avendra;

f. mﬁwd to-provide a proper accounting of Allowances, or of the fees an<_i charges
by Marriott and its affiliates; ' |

g t_‘ailed.to maintain accurate and complete books, records and financial statements .
for the Hotels; and )

h. failed to provide access to books, records and material #greements and to submit .

to an audit despite repeated demands by CTF.
148. CTF has provided the Marriott Defendants written notice of the breaches
identified abové, which constitute events of default under the Management Agreement, and the

Marriott Defendants have failed to cure said events of default Withiq the periods specified by the

' Management Agreement.

149. CTF has suffered and will continue to suffer damag&s as a direct result of
the Marriott Defendants' breaches of their obligations under the 1999 Agreement,

For Breach of Fiduciary Duty
(Against the Marriott Defendants)

150.  CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in

" paragraphs 1 to 149 as if fully set forth herein.

151. By virtue of the role played by the Max:riott Defendants as Manager nhdex"
the Agreements, an agency relationship was explicitly created and continues to exist between
CTF and the Marriott Defendants. Pursuant thereto CTF was entitled to, and did, repose trust
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and confidence in RHOC to manage and operate the Hotels to maximize the proﬁtability of the

Hotels, including by the handling of revenues, operating funds, Allowances and other proceeds _

related thereto. Accordingly, a special confidential fiduciary relationship was created and
continues to exist between the CTF and the Marriétt Defendants.

152. By virtue of the Marriott Acquisition and its resultant cbmpletc domina-
tion and contro} of RHOC, Marriott is the alter ego of RHOC and has therefore acquired and
assumed the fiduciary obugaﬁons of RHOC toward CTF. ' o

153. By virtue of the agéncy and confidential relatiogships existing between
CTF and the Marrioﬁ Defendants, the Marriott Defendants owe to CTF fiduciary duties in

operating the Hotels, including, without limitation, fiduciary obligations and utmost duties of

_ good faith, fair dealing, full disclosure, loyalty, care and candor.

154.  In purchasing any goods or services on behalf of CTF and/or the Hotels,

the Marriott Defendants owed CTF a fiduciary duty of full disclosure and a duty to refram from .

seekmg any profit to themselvcs or their affiliates by virtue of their agency relanonsh1p except

with the knowledge and consent of CTF. '
155. Inviolation of th:.- foregoing fiduciary duties to CTF, the Marriott
Defendants have, inter alia: o |
a.  secretly diverted to themselves and their affiliate Avendra the potential economic

benefits derived from centralized purchasing on behalf of the Hotels;

b. failed to maximize the profitability of CTF by, inter alia, entering into a series of

agreements conceming. Avendra contrary to CTF's interests, désigned solely to
promote Defendants' interests;
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c. p;irticipated in undisclosed self-intefestgd and affiliated transactions to the
_detriment of CTF;
d. improperly delegated non-delégable agency duties to Avendra; -
e diverted fnonie_s that should have t;een paid to CTF by, inter alia, the iniﬁrope;r
' imposiﬁon of their own or their afﬁﬁates' fees and charges and through the réceipt
of ﬁndisclosed kickbacks;
f. violated their duty of candor by fmhng to disclose material facts about beneﬁts

mcludmg kickbacks, recewed by the Marriott Defendants in connection with

transactions and contracts on behalf of the Hotels;

g. refused to provide a proper ax:-c;)uming of fees, charges and Allowar;ces assessed
or retained by Marriott and/or Marriott affiliates, including Avendra; and

h. . failed to maintain ac;:uratc and complete books, records and financial statements
for t'he Hotels, _ '

156. Such conduct, winch has continued to occur even aﬁcr thc Marriott
Defendants were placed on notice of the consequences of such misconduct in 1999, was
intentional, wilfm,l malicious and wan_tdn. |
157.  CTF has suffered and wxll continue to sﬁffer é;:or;omic a:;d other injuries

as a result of the Marriott Defendants' breaches of their fiduciary dut.ié.

(Agalnst Marnott and Avendra)

158. CTF repeats and réalleg&_s each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 to 157 as if fully set forth herein. |
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15 9. Pursuant to the Management Agreement, RHOC owed a: fiduciary 'dnty to
CTF as the sole and exclusive agent managing and operatihg the Hotels. In addition, CTF
reposed trust and confidence in RHOC to manage and operate the Hotels in CTF's interests.

160. By commitﬁng: the acts anci omissions describéd abdvc, RHOC violated its
fiduciary duties to CTF.

161. By virtue of the Marriott Acquisition, and its subsequent complete
. domination and control of RHOC, Marriott difectqd and knoWineg p-articipated in, aide§ and
abetted, and caused and contributed to RHOC's breach of ﬁdilciar}_' duties in order to maximize
the illicit returns to Marriott. By virtue of its knowing participation in the Marriott Defepdénts'
unauthorized delegation of core agenc;y dutiés,_ degriméntal and un;:{)mpetitive agreements, and
soliciting and receiving kickbacks, rébates; discounts and other undisclosed consideration,
Avendra also knowingly participated in the Marriott Defendants' breach of fiduciary duties in
order to maximize the illicit returns to,Marriott.‘ . |

162.  Such conduct was intentional, wilful, malicious and wanton,

183. CTF has suffered and will continue 1o suffer as a result ;)f Marriott's and
Avendra's aiding and abetting RHOC's breaches of fiduciary duty.
o cousry
- . For Fraud

(Against the Marriott Defendants)

164. . CTF repeats and realleges cach and every allegation contained in

L

_ paragraphs 1 to 163 as if fully set forth herein.
1165.  Asalleged above, the Marriott Defendants fraudulently concealed
L numerous improper charges, fees and self-interested transactions.
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166. The Marriott Defendants were obligated to disclose these charges, fees and
transactions under the Agreem;nts and under their common law fiduciary duties described above.

167.  The monthly ﬁ@ciﬂ statements and reports provided by RHOC, at
Marriott's direction, to CTF during the period fror.n April 1999 through the present falsely siated ’
and/or concealed material facts concerning the actual rcsﬁlts of operation of the Hotels in that
these statements did not disclose, inter alia, the amount of improper and eIToneous charges and ‘
fces, the amount of unauthonzed and improper transacnons w1th Marriott affiliates, and the
amouqt of consideration received by the Marriott Defcndams from self-dealing or afﬁliate;d
transactions which properly belonged to CTF and the amount of Allowances diverted by the
Marriott Defendants to their own éurpoSes. |

163. '[he Marriott Dcfendaﬁts also misrepresented the benefits and actual costs
of MVP, and concealed their scheme to obtain secret kickbacks from Molloy in order to induce
CTF's participation in MVP.

169.  The Marriott Defendants intentionally made the false and misleading
material misstatements described above (see supra 1143, 95, 124, 147 and 162-158), knowing
that they were untrue, misieading and/or @n&ealed material facts which the Marriott Defendants
had an affirmative fduciary and contractual duy to disclose, with the intent that CTF would ely
on them. V

170.  CTF reasonably aﬁd justifiably relied on thc;sé reprgsentaﬁons and
omissions to its detriment not knowing that thcy were false and misleading‘ .

171. In furtherance of their fraudulent scheme to beneﬁt Marriott at the expense

of CTF, the Marriott Defendants mtentlonally utilized Marnott affiliates, mcludmg Avendra, to
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-launder the improper profits derived from the Marriott Defendants’ secret affiliated transactions

in order to conceal such profits from CTF.

172.  CTF was damaged by an amount to be determined following discovery
.ar.ld at trial as a direct and proximate result of the Marriott Defendants’ fraud.
COUNT V1
For Conversion .
(Against the Marriott Defendants)

173.  CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in

' peragraphs 1 to 172 as if fully set forth herein.

174. The Marriott Defegdanﬁ have improperly taken the Hotels’ funds as their
own, improperly paid amounts to be established at trial to theméelves, their affiliates and others,
inciuding Avendra, improperly acco{mtcd for, failed to accounf for, or,delib’cmtdy conceéled the
amount of such payments and otherwise misappmp‘riatéd ﬁ& asto wﬁich they havé no righi,
including kickbacks from Mélloy and certain Allowances and Sponsorship Funds.

175.  Such improper use by the Marriott Defendants of these funds violates
CTF's tight to possession' of such funds and constiﬁxtes a conversibn.

176. CTF has been directly damaged as a result of the Mamott Defendants'
conversion, in an amount to be determined at mal

177.  CTF repeats and rcalleges each and every allcgat:on contmned in
paragraphs 1 to 176 as if fully set forth berein.

I78.  As described above (ses supra 1§ 162-69) the Marriott Defendants
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-willfully and inténtionally misrepresented and .omitted_.to disclose to CTF mateﬁal facts related o

their management of the Hotels, including material facts related to kickbacks from vendor

contracts, such as Molloy, and improper charges and fees allocated to the Hotels.
179.  Moreover, as further described above (see jd.) the Marriott Defendants
intentionally misrepresented to CTF that their vendor agreements were competitive, and

concealed the vendor kickbacks provided to Defendants and their affiliates.

180.  Also as described in this Complaint (see supra §§ 162-69; infia 1§ 245

246) the Marriott Defendants sent false and misleading financial statements conceming the

Hotels to CTF that did not disclose, among other things, improper charges, profits from self-

interested transactions, vendor kickbacks and other payments.

181.  Because of their fiduciary relationship with éTF, the Marriott Defendants
had a duty to disclose material facts related to the managemént of the Hotels to CTF.

182.  CTF justifiably relied on the Marriott Defendants' misrepresentations that
CTF and/or the ‘Hot‘els were beﬁeﬁtﬁng from competitive 'p;'ic&s in the marketplacevfér these
vendor contracts.

183.  CTF also justifiably relied on the Marriott Defendants' imeﬁﬁona]
nxim:epresentations that the Marriott Defmdants would oper#te the Hotels to maximize value to
CTF based on their exj:ertise in the promoﬁon, ménégement and operation of hotels, and their
representations that they were honest ahd‘tmst:worthy in connection with the operations of and ‘
accounting for the ﬁotels. |

| 184. These reprcseﬁt#ions ‘were false when made, or were made recklessly
and/or with conscious disregard for their mateﬁality to CTF and CTF's detrimental reliance
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.thereon.

185.  Asaresult of CTF's reliance on the Marriott Defendants' misrepresenta-

tions, CTF has suffered economic damages. Accordingly, CTF seeks recovery of monetary

compensation in an amount to-be determined at trial by jury.

186. CTF furthermore seeks punitive damages in an amount to be determined at

trial because the Marriott Defendants’ misrcpresentation.é Wmc willful, malicious, wanton,
reckless and oppressive and/or were made in éons?ious disregard for the rights of CTF.
| "COUNT Vil
-For Negligent Misrepresentation
(Against the Marriott Defendants)
187. CTF repeats and reallegc;.s each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 to 186 as if fuliy set forth hefein. | |
188. In making the representations,rcferred to at paragraphs 179 to 182, the
Marriott Defendants assumed a duty to take all @onable care to ensure that sﬁch represénta— j

tions were accurate and complete in every particular.

189. In failing to ensure the accuracy and completeness of such representatibns,

on which CTF relied, the Marriott Defendants have violated that duty of care.

190. CTF was damaged by an amount to be determined following discovery

and at trial as a direct and proximate result of the Marriott Defendants' negligent misrepresenta-

tions and omissions.
For Breach of Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing
(Against the Marriott Defendants) o

191.  CTF repeats and rcanegés each and every allegation contained in . -
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. paragraphs 1 to 190 as if fully set forth berein.

192, The Agreements both contained an implied covenant which imposes on

the Marriott Defendants a duty to act in the highest good faith and to act fairly and honestly in

.their dealings with CTF and not to deprive CTF of the benefits of these agreements.

193.  The Mariott Defendants materially breached this implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing by, inter alia: (lj disregarding the promise. to maximize the Hotels'
profitability; (2) engaging in undisclosed self-deal.ing and affiliated transactions deeigned to
benefit Marriott, at the expense of CTF and fhe Hotels; (3) imposing improper and/or undis-
closed fees, charges and allocations on the Hotels; and (4) failing to provide information to CTF
upon request concerning such affiliated transactions, and such improper fees, charges and
allocations. A |

194. CTF ﬁxrthermere seeks punitive damages in an amount to be determined at ‘
trial because the Marriott Defendants’ misconduct was willful, malicieus, wanton, reckless and |
oppressive and/or wcre made in conscious disregard for the rights of CTF.

COUNT X |
For Tortious Interference with Contract
(Against Marriott and Avendra)

195.  CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegatxon contained in
paragraphs 1 to 194 a5 if fully set forth herein.

196.. ‘I'he Agreements constitute a binding and enforceaﬁle contract bctweeﬁ the.
parties thereio.

197. Avendra (and Mamott, in the case of the Management Agreement) knew

of the ex:stence of this contrachml relanonshxp
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198; Avendra (and Métriott, in the case of the Management Agreement),
through their intentional actions to illicitly profit from RHOC's management of the Hotels by the
acts described above, caused or significantly contributed to RHOC's material breaches of the
'Ag_reements-. |

199. Avendra (and Marriott, in the case of the Management Agreement)

" through their intentional actions to illicitly profit at the expense of CTF by promoting or causing

RHOC's violation of its fiduciary duties and contractual obligations to CTF, acted without legal

© justification.

200. By virtue of the Marriott Defendants' material breaches of the Agreements,
caused at the behest of_Avén&ra (and Marriott, in the case of the Management Agreement), CTF
has suffered and will contim_.le_ to suffer damages in an amount to be detcrinin_ed at trial.

201. CTF furthermore secks punitive damages in an amount to be determined at
trial becé.use Marriott's qnd Avendra's misconduct was willful, mélicious, wanton, reckless and

oppressive and/or were made in conscious disregard for the rights of CTF.

COUNT X1
i ichment

(Agaiqst All Defendants)
202, CTF repeats and rpa_llegés each an(i every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 to 201 as if fully set forth herein. '
203.  Defendants engaged in the acts described above for the purpose of, am0ng.
other things, enrig:hiﬁg themselves at the expense <;f CTF, and have, in fact, been so enriched

through their receipt of, inter alia: (1) improper charges, fees and allocations; (2) undisclosed

rebates, kickbacks and other consideration from transactions entered into on behalf of CTF; and
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-(3) profits gm&éd at CTF"s expense from the promotion of :Avcndra.

.204.  Accordingly, CTF is entitled to recover actual, compensatory and
consequential damages .and Defendants should be required to disgorge any profits they have
.unjustly-made at the exﬁense of CTF.

20s. CTF ~fl.lrthcxmore seeks punitive damages in an amount to be determined at
trial because Defendants’ nﬁscoﬁduct was willful, malicious, wanton, reckless anci oppressive

-

and/or were made in conscious disregard for the rights of CTF.

COUNT XTI
For Constructive Trust
(Against All Defcndants)

206.  CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegahon contamed in
paragraphs 1 to 205 as if fully set fonh herein.

207.  Defendants have received and retained funds in violation of their
fiduciary duties to CTF, including, jnter alia: (1) funds obtained by imposing on the Hotels |
undisclosed and improper charges, fees and allocations; (2) funds, rebates, kickbacks and other

consideration obtained directly and indirectly from third parties and affiliated parties through

improper self-dealing or afﬁhated transactions and/or improper use of allowances, and (3) funds

obtained or withheld as part of the acts of conversmn alleged above.
208. In further violation of their duties of fair dealing and full disclosure,
Defendants have unposed, or threatened to i 1mpose, costs on the Hotcls for promotxon of
Avendra, thhout confcmng any com:spondmg benefit on the Hotels or obtaining the knowmg
consent of CTF. |
209. By virtue of the Defendants’ confidential and fiduciary relationship to
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- CTF, the proceéds and profits derived by Manrio& and its affiliates from these brograms,
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including their investment in Avendra, are impressed with a constructive trust for the benefit of
CTF.

210. By virtue of Defendants' violation of the relationship of trust and
vconﬁdence then existing between them and CTF, Defendants hold these excess monies as a

constructive trustee for CTF's benefit.
xm ’ -
For a Declaratory Judgment: CTF's
~_Rights under the Agreements
(Against All Defendants)
211. CTF repws and realleges each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 to 210 as xffully set forth herein,
212.  An actual controversy has arisen and now exists betwcen CTF and the -
Marriott Defendants concerning thclr respective rights and duties under the Agreements.
213 CTF desires a judicial determination of its rights and duties under the
Management Aérecmcnt, declaring, inter gug, that;
a. | each of the Marriott Defendants are agents of CTF;
b, each of the Marriott Defendants are in a confidential relationship with CTF:
c.  each of the Marriott Defendants are ﬁdmam of CTF;
d. each of the Marriott i)efendants are bound by the terms of the Agreements;
e Mariott is the alter cgo of RHOC, and/or caused the contractual breaches com-
plined of herein, and is lisble for the contractual breaches, breaches of fiduciary

duty committed by RHOC, including the receipt of rebates, discounts and profits -
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from affiliated and/or undzsclosed transactlons

the Marriott Defendants unproperly retained the Molloy kickbacks and are not

entitled to recover the sums relaﬁng to the Hotels comprised in its check for

$2,027,000;

the Marriott Defendants improperly délegated core agency duties to Avendra,

. -alternatively, created a sham entity by which to evade fee restrictions;

Marriott is no;( entitled to charge any procurement fe¢ on purchases by Avendra

and any such Fees already imposed are improper;

PSR ——

the acts and omissions described above constitute mAtcﬁal breaches of the

Agreements which have not been cured within the applicable cure periods;

the acts and omissions described above constitufe violations of the Marriott

De; fcndants' fiduciary duties to CTF, warrantmg remedies of disgorgement of ax;y

proﬁts earned by the Mamott Defendants, including management and other fees

paid to date, and

transa&ions bctwecn or among Marriétt, RHOC and Marri_ott-afﬁliat& to v(rhi,ch ' *
CTF has ﬁot knowingly and expressly consented; including Avendra, &e voidable . :
at the option of CTF. . : ' o - | _ '

214. CTF is entitled to terminate the Agreements at will, without cost and

without further notice.

(Against the Marriott Defendants ) : - _ *
15. . CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in _
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paragraphs 1 to 214 as if fully set forth Berein., ‘

216. By virmé of the Marriott Acquisition, and its subsequent complete
domination and controi of RHOC, Mgrriott is the alter ego of RHOC and has therefore assumed
.thc disclosure and accounting obligations of RHOC toward CTF. |

217.  Under the Agreemen;s, the iviarriott Defendants were granted, and
currently exercise, exc.lusive control and operatioﬁ of the Hoteis, including, without limita;ion, '
the exclusive possession and control c;f the accougts, books and records, financial records and
accounting system for the Hoteis. | .l |

218.  Through undisclosed fees, charges and affiliated transactions, and the
receipt of undisclos_ed Allowances, the Marriott Defendants and/or their affiliates have improp- '.
erly received unknown amounts, which rightfully belong to CTF |

219. As ﬁduciéries, the Marriott Dgfendants must account to CTF for all
éxpenses and costs incurred and all profits deriw./ed from their agency.

220. A full accounting is needed to apprize CTF of the full extent of the

improper fees, charges and transactions committed by the Marriott Defendants, and the corre-

_sponding amounts due and owing to CTF.

221.  CTF has no adequate rcmedy at law.

222. " For these and other reasons that CTF may determine after further
discovery, the Court should grant CTF an accounting of all financial matters relating to the
Hotels and the Agreements, including but not limited to all matters rcle;ting to funds and
resources flowing to the Marriot: Deferdant, their affilises and ohers and any funds that should
have been paid 1o CTF. ' |

6.
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QUNT XV
For an Audit Pursuant to the Agreements
(Against the Marriott Defendants)
223.  CTF repeats and rcalleges each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 110222 as if fully set forth herein.

224, Section 4.4 of the Management Agreement provide_s that all "books of

‘account and other records reflecting the results of the Business of [the] Owner . . . shall be

available to Owner and its representatives at all refasonable times fdr examnination, audit,
inspection, copying and txﬁnscrij:tion ... This obligationiéontinues thrdughout the Manage- * -
ment Agreement and survives termination for a period of three years.

225 Section IV(AX(5)(a) of the 1999 Agreement provides that "Marriott shall
maintain sufficient and adequate records of all such Unrestricted Allowéncés recg_ived by
Marriott in order to enable CTF(] to review and audit such allowances on demand.” |

226. By its lotter dated February 6, 2002, CTF has given Marriott reasonable
notice of its intention to audit the booics and records of the Hotels pursuant to the above-
referenced provisions of the Agreements (coIlectiﬁ:ly the "Audit leigaﬁods").

227, As alleged above, Marriott has concealed its receipt of Allowances, and |
has converted so-callgd Unfestricted Allowande’s to its own pdrpos&.

228 In fuiling to furnish the books and records of the Hotels for audi iq the
manner andtothecxtentspecxﬁedbyCTF the Marriott Defendants aremmatcnalbreachofﬂlc
Audit Obhganons Unless and until the Mamott Defendants are ordered to honor the Audn
Obligations, CTF has no adequate remedy at law

229.  CTF is entitled to an order directing the Marriott Defcndm to make
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. av‘ailable for cxéﬁlinaﬁon, audit, inspection, copying aqd transcription:
a. . a}l documents and other information requested to in CTF's .‘Februajfy 6, 2002 ~
letter; and/or
b. all such other books of account anc'l other records as CTF and its designated
auditors may request reflecting: (i) the results of the Ho;els; and (ii) all such
Allowances (as defined in the Agreements), including Unrestricted Allowances
and Sponsorship Funds as have been received by Mariott.
- COUNTXVI =
For Violation of RICO, Section 1962(c)
(Against All Defendants) _ o

230. CTF repeats and realleges each and every aﬂegaﬁon contained in
paragraphs 1 to 229 as if fully set forth herein. |

231, Section 1962(c) of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations
Act (;'RICO_"), 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), prohibits a;ny person associated with an entexpnse engaged
in interstate commerce (a "RICO Enterprise™) to participate in the conduct of such RICO
Enterprise's aﬁ‘aus through a pattern of racketeering activity. This case involves three IIUCO
Enterprises.

232.  First, the Mawiott Defendants have transformed the Hotels from a0
otherwisc legitimate business into an "enterprise” within the meaning of RICO by operating them
and conducting their business and affairs through a pattern of racketeering actmty (hemmaﬁer |
"Enterprise I"). The purpose of Enterprise I was to create a business vehicle that De‘tfcndams |

could use for their unlawful ends. S;;eciﬁcally, baving induced CTF to continue to entrust .

Marriott to be Manager of the Hotels, and having abused that role in order to skim off unautho-
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rized, undisclosed profits, kickbacks, allowances and "Sponsorship Funds," the .Marriott

Defendants pi@i:_ed.themselves in a position to bilk the Hotels by their unlawful acts, and t0 eamn
improper profits at the expense of CTF.

233. The associaﬁon-in-fact among the Marriott Defendants and Avend:ra; by -
which they committed their unlawful acts, is ‘also an "enterprise” within the meaning of RICO
(hereinafter "Enterprise II"). One of the purposes of Enterprise II was to earn improper profits

through a scheme and artifice to defraud. )

234.  The association-in-fact between Molloy and the Marriott Defendants was a -

further enterprise within the meaning of RICO (hereinafter "Enterprise III"). One of the purposee
of Enterprise III was to eam improper profits thfough a echeme'and artifice to defraud.

. 235. Allofthe Enterpnses are structured through written contracts, oral
agreements ~and corporate (and similar entlty) ownership. Enterprise I was formed upon the
Marriott Acquisition and Marriott' s assumption of the role as Manager under the Management’
Agreement, was furthered both by Ihe indocemems of Marriott to ptevent.termination of the
Management Agreement anct memorialized in the 1999 Agreement. Enterprise 1I was formed
end structured in part by the written agreements between Marriott and Averitira appointing
Avendra as Marriott's purported purchaeing agent including the PSA, additional details of which
lie oeculia.rly within Marriott's and Avendra‘s knowledge, as well as the etrangements between
Mat-riott and the other purported Foundere estabhsknng Avendra, such as the Letter of Intent
other details of which lie pecuharly thhm Mamott’s, Avendra's and the Forunders knowledge .
Enterprise III was formed by agxeements and arrangements between Molloy and the Marriott -
Defendants, deta.its of which lie pecutiarly within their knowledge.
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236.  As evidenced bf the conduct described in this Complaini, from the date of .
the 1999 Agreement, through and including the datc of the filing of this complaint, the Marriot
Defendants unlawfully, willfully, and knowingly conducted the businésses and affairs of |
| Enterprise I, from the date of at least Janlgary 206 1, the Defendants conducted thé business and * .
affairs of Enterprise II, and from at least October 2000, the Marﬁott Defendants and Molloy
conducted the Abusiness and affairs of Enterprise LI, through a scheme and artifice to defraud by'
falsely purporting and promising to render faithfu! and honest services as ﬁduciariés, by» falsely
- promising to take only certain amounts and types of compensation from CTF, by taking unlawful -

“and prohibited compensation, by making false and fraudulent repr’esentz-nions'and entries in .

books and récords, and by concealing the fact that they had' done so. The scheme and artifice to
defraud was effected by means of multiple violations of the mail and wire fraud sﬁtnnes of the
United States, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341 and 1343. | ,
237.  From the date of the 1999 Agreement, through and including the date éf
the filing of this complaint, the Defendénts unlawfully, wiﬂﬁﬂiy, and k:iowingly conducted thé

businesses and affairs of the Enterprises by soliciting, accepting, inducing, or agreeing to accept

certain undisclosed monetary or equivalent benefits from third parties with the intent to violate

their statutory and common-law duties as agents of CTF. These acts constituted multiple actsof

embezzlement and theft in violation of Article 27, section 132 of the Code of Maryland and

section 22—32}1 of t;ne D.C..Code, as well as violations of 18 USC §§ 1341 and 1343. ,

238. Mor;over, msofa.r as every bank deposit of ﬁxnds' obtained ﬁ'_omAplaintiffs.
in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341 and 1343 (including transfers to Matﬁotfs own acconn; from
the account it maintains as agent for CTF at Mellon Bahk) furthered Defendants' ability to |
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. conduct their fraudulent schémcs directed at plaintiffs, such bank deposits constitute money

lamdeﬁng transactions in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and are thercforen predicate

acts within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(1)(B).
| 239.  The multiple acts and omissions in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1343,
1956(a) and Md. Ann. Code art. 27, § 132 constitute a "pattern of racketeering activity” within
the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961.

240. The scheme and paitem described in this complaint has been ongoing

since at least 1999, and continues to date, a period of almost 3 years Because iht_: scheme and

pattern described in this complaint is part of the ongoing corporate policy of Defendants; it poses

_ the imminent threat that it will continue indefinitely unless redressed, and that it will harm

multiple victims, in addition to CTF.
241.  The pattern of racketeering activity described in this complaint was
seﬁarate and distinct from the Enterprises themselves, in that the acts constitmiug such pattern

exceed the true purpose and scope of the agreements and ownership structure described in the

foregoing paragrapbs. -

242. Al of the Enterprises are ongoing entities and assomatxous with no ﬁmtz
term, and will exxst untl Dcfendants terminate them or theu' unlawful conduct is enjoined..

' 243.  All of the Enterprises engage in and affect i xmemtatc commerce. Enter~
prise ], among other things, manages boteis throughout the United States wlnch are used by
persons in interstate commerce, and purchases goods and services in interstate commerce, and
enters into contracts with vendors of goods and services that in thcmselves involve the move-
ment of goods énd services in interstate comméme. Enterprises Il and IIl purchase and sell
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. goods and services in interstate commerce, uses the channels of interstate commerce, and are

themselves a conduit and channel of interstate commerce.

244,

In furtherance of their scheme and artifice to defraud, the Defendants, with

'Speciﬁcintent to defrand, used the United States postal service, private or commercial interstate”

carriers, and wire communications in interstate cormerce to commit multiple violation of the

245.

mail and wire fraud statutes of the United States, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341 and 1343.

Among the communications (including mailings and deliveries) by

Marriott to CTF iﬁ fm‘therénce of this scheme were:

a. The correspondence by which Marriott secured CTF's entry into the various.

Mo[loy Agreements

i.

ii.

' a letter send yxa Airborne Express on.Octobér 26,2000 from W. David
Mann, Assistant General Counsel of Marriott ("Mann") to Patrick -
Gaffney, Chief Financial Officer of CTF ( "Gaﬁﬁ'ney"),; inviting CTF to
excc'utc: the Molloy Agreements an& eﬁcldsing drafts thereof for §arious of
the Hotels incluciing: Atlanta Waverly, Austin, Bedford, Chicago, Cotton-

woods Resort, Esmcralda Resort, Harborplace/Bammore Mayﬂower and

Oak Brook By letter dated November 8, 2000, CTF returned these

bont:acts, separately executed on behalf of cach, of these Hotels,

a letter send by Airborne Hpms datcd Noveinber 20, 2000 from Mapn to
Gaffney, inviting CTF to execute Molloy Agreements for the following
ixidividual Hot;als: Aﬂantﬁ Concoﬁrse, Cleve!ani Dallas, Denver, Nash-
ville, Oakbrook, Orlando Resort, Pinelsle Resort, St. Louis and
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Westchester. Soon thereafter, C'TF'retun.led Molloy Agrée’ments executed

for each of these Hotels.

- A series of reports, sent by post and/or electronic means by Marriott's finance

department periodically after the date of the 1999 Agreement to CTF's finance
department (the "Periodic Charge Reports™), each purporting to giye atrue report .
of each Program Charge incurred during such period, all of which were materially .

deceptive because: .
i each of the Periodic Charge Reports for the periods from May 1999 to at
least December 2001 fraudulently and deliberately concealed kickbacks
. from Molloy; | .
i, each of the Periodic Charge Reports from at least April 2001 to March
2002 fraudulently and deliberately concealed from CTF any details of the
Sponsorship Funds being divcnedlby befendants;
fii. each of the Periodic Charge Report.s' deliberatelﬁ concealed the extent to
which third party payments were being improperly cIassxﬁed by Marriott
as Rcstnctcd Allowances and used for Mamott's own beneﬁt (such as in
the "Renmssanee Street Restaurant and Bar Program"), whxch proﬁt to
Marriott should have been accountcd to CTF; and
iv.  each Periodic Charge Report purported to give a true statement of the
Program Charges whereas for the reasons descnbed hereinabove the
Progmm Charges were materially misstated. |
A series of reports, sent by post ‘each month from -May 1999 to March 2002 from
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Marriott to CTF, containing éer_iod proﬁt and loss statements for the Hoteis
_ ("Monthly P&L's") and electronically each month containing monthly trial
balances ("Monthly Trial Bﬁlances"). Each of the Monthly P&L's and Monthly

Trial Balances was false in that ca;:h of them purported to reflect accurately the -

operating profits generated by the ﬁotgls, and CTF relied on these as a wo@le

‘monthly guide as to the operation of the Hotels. In fact:

i. The Monthly P&L's and Monthly Trial Balances for May 1999 to Febru-
ary 2002 concealcd moneys that ought to have been reported as a reduc-
tion in oMg expenses to the Hotels, whereas théy were secretly
appropnated by Marriott as part of the A/V Fee; | |

il. The Monthly P&L's and Monthly Tnal Balances for at least March 2001
to March 2002 concealed moneys that ought to have becn reported asa

_ | reduction in operatmg expenses to the Hotels, whereas thcy were secretly
' diverted by Mamott and/or Avendra as Sponsorshlp Funds and/or other
supposed Unrcstncted Al}owanc’:es;

iii. Each of the Monthly P&L's and Mon:thly Trial Balances deliberately
conccaled the extent to whxch vendor payments were belng improperly

 classified by Marriott as Restricted Allowances and used for Marriott's
own benefit (such as in the "Renaissance Street Restaurant and Bar P_ro- ‘
gram"), which profit to Marriott shoul-d have been accounted to CTF; |
246.  Among the wire communications in iﬁerstate 'co‘mmcrccvin furtherance of
the aforesaid scheme and artiﬁge to defraud were:
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A letter dated April 28, 2000 forwarded by facsimile by Kevin Kimball, Executive

- Vice President and Chief F inancial Officer at Man'iott Lodging ("Kimball"), to K.

Daniel Hemmger, Executive chc Preszdent at CTF ("Hemmger") which letter
contained a statement purportmg to comply with section VII of the 1999 Agree- -
ment by certifying that all charges from April 23, 1999 unti] December 31, 1999
.complied with the 1999 Agreement and listing and clessifying any new Programs
or material ch;nges in that period (the "1999 Certification”). The 1999 Certifica-
tion: _. |
i | falsely certified tﬁat Marriott's charges for 1999 were in complianée with
the rules set forth in the 1999 Agreement; .

. failed to disclose receipt of secret kickbacks from Molloy;

iii. deliberaxelj( and fraudulently omitted to divulge the extent to which

vendor payments were being improperly classified by Marriott as Re-

stricted Allowances and used for Marriott's own benefit (such as in the

"Renaissance Street Restaurant and Bar Program ), whxch proﬁt 1o
Marriott should have been accounted to CTF; and
iv. dchbcmtely and ﬁ'andulcnﬂy omitted to dlsclosc the extent to which
Marriott was improperly diverting moneys purpo;tedly classified as
Sponsdrship Funds. |
A letter dated April 26, 2001 forwarded by fax by Kimball to Heininger, which |
letter contained a stéx;rmcnt phrporting to comply thh Section VII of the 1999
Agreement by certifying that all charges for fiscal year 2000 complied with the
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1999 Agreement and hstmg and classxfymg any new Programs or material

B _ changes in that permd (the "2000 Certification”). The 2000 Ccmﬁcauon

C
i falsely certified that Marnotr's charges for 2000 were in comphance w1th
the rules set forth in the 1999 Agreement; '
c fi.  deliberately and fraudulently omitted to disclose kickbacks from Molioy:
and
‘C il deliberately and fraudulently omitted to divale the extent to which third
party payments were being improperly classified by Marriott as Restﬁcted A
Allowances and used for Mariott's own beneﬁt (such as in the "Renais-
C | sance Street Restaurant and Bar Progra.m") which proﬁt to Mamott
| should have been accounted to CTF. |
| ¢ Aseries of emails from Patrick Volz, Vice President of Finance and Acoounﬁx{g,
N | Mam’ott's Renaissance North America division ("Volz;"): . |
i.  Dated March 10, 2000 to Gaffney, purporting to sumimarize all Unre-
c | stricted Allowances for cach Hotel during financial year 1§9§; |
| i, Dated June 5, 2000 to Gaffney, purporting fusther to describe Unrestricted
~ Allowances and rebates for the Hotels for financial year 1999;
N iii.  Dated October 17,2000 to Gaffney, purporting to describe some Re-
stricted Allowances for financial year 1999
< iv.  Dated April 19,2001 to Gaffney purporting to report on Unrestricted
Allowances i:'or each ﬂotel for financial year 2600;
~ Voo Dated June 28, 2001 _td Gafiney purbo_rting to report on marketing allow-
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ances for jche Hotels' financial year 1999;4
vi.  Dated July 25, 2001 to Gaffney giving a revised report on Unrestricted |
Allowances for financial year 2000; and
vii.  Dated January 5, 2002 to Gaﬁ‘ney purpo;'ﬁng to report on rebates for
ﬁnancial year 2001 (collective‘iy the "Volz Emaﬂs"). , |
'anch of the Volz Emails was deceptive in that, inter alia, they deliberately
concealed the true nature of the A/V f‘ee Moreover, the January 5, 2002 email -
was deceptive in that, inter alia, it dehberatcly concealed the diversion of Spon-
sorship Funds and the hnpropeg use of Unrestricted Allomngw by Avendra
and/or Mmﬁoﬁ. : |

247. Moreover, by soliciting and accepting kickbacks from vendors for

themselves and for Avendra, in violation of their ﬁducxaxy duty to CTF, the Marriott Defendants '

mded and abetted by Avendra, vmlated the Maryland embezzlement statute, whxch states in

pertinent part:

If any executor, administrator, guardian, committee, trustee, receiver or any
fiduciary shall frandulently and wilfully appropriate to any use and-purpose not in
the due and lawful execution of his trust, any money or any other thing of value .
‘which may come into his hands as such executor, administrator, guardian,
committee, trustee, receiver, or in any other fiduciary capacity, or secrete it thh a
fraudulent intent to appropriate it to such use or purpose, he shall be deemed
guilty of embezziement, and shall be punished upon conviction by imprisonment
in the penitentiary for not less than one year nor more than five years. .

Md. Ann. Code art. 27, § 132 (2001).

248. Likewise, to the extent that the conduct referred to in paragraph 247 was

perpetrated by the Marriott Defendants from Marriott's corporate offices m the District of
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Columbia, they (sided and abetted by Avendra) have violated section 22-3211 of the District of

Columbia Code, which states in pertinent part that

[a] person commits the offense of theft if that person wrongfully obtams or uses
the property of anothcr with intent:

(l) To deprive the other of a nght to the property or a benefit of the property;
or .

@ To appropnate the property to his or her own use or to the use of a thn'd
person. -

" 1d. §22-3211(b). Subjsectioh 22-3211(a) of the I).C. Code provide§ relevantly that for the

purposes of sub-secti_on 22-32i I(b); [t]he term "wrongfully oi)téins or ﬁses" includes conduct
previously knowp as . . . larceny by trust,” thus incorporating all cases of ‘misappropriation and/or
frandulent conversion by a fiduciary, as alleged here.

249, Section 223212 of the D.C. Code provides that theft in the first dcgree ‘
namely misappropriation of property w°rth in excess of $250, is pumshable by ovet five years
nnpnsonment_

250. Byvreason of the foregoing, the Defendants have éonducted the affairs of

the Enterprises through the aforementioned pattern of racketeering activity, and have violated,

and continue to violate, Section 1962(c) of RICO.

251.  As already alleged, the business and property interests of CTF have been
damaged by reason of the Defendants' racketeering activity.

252. The direct result of the tacketeeting activity described above has been to -

seriously diminish the value of the Hotels in CTF's hands. Defchdanis are chargeable with that

decrease in value as damages for violation of RICO.
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253. Accordingly, CTF seeks treble damages in such amount as may be proven
at the trial of thxs action or otherwise, recovery of the costs of this htlgatwn and an award of -
reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by the federal RICO statue, 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).

.~ COUNTX |
For Violation of RICO, Section 1962(a) .
(Against the Marriott Defendants)
.254.  CTF repeats and r@leges each and every alleggtion contained in
paragraphs 1 to 253 as if fully set forth herein. )

255.. Section 1962(a) of RICO prohibits a person; as defined in 18 Us.C.

§ 1961, from investing, directly or indirectly, iﬁcome deri\;ed from a pattern of racketceri_rig
act.ivity-in the' operation 6f an Enterprise which aﬁ'eét; interstate commerce, in which that persog “
participated as a principal.

| 256. The Marriott Defendants are "persons” within the meaning of 18 U S. C
§ 1961. Defendants were and continue to be prmclpals in the undcrlymg pattern of racketeenng
activity of Enterprises 1 and [T as alleged in Count XVI.

~ 257.  The Marriott Defendants have received from such racketeering activity

proceeds in the form of fraudulent fees, t‘:harges, and illegal vendor kickbacks.

258.  The Marriott Defendants have also invested these proceeds in new
programs that broaden Enterpnses I's and III's abiliﬁw t0 procure secret proﬁﬁ from the Hotels,
and have been enabled to perpetuate their scheme to defrand by virtue of such invéstmmt.

259. The Marriott Defendants invested proceeds from Enterprise I's and [II's

-racketeering activities in Avendra, éjoint venture that multiplies Defci;dants' ability to set prices -

without cbmpethion and charge undisclosed kickbacks.
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260. The Marriott Defendants benefitted from the illegal revenues, charges, and

kickbacks that they procured through reinvestment in Enterprise I's and III's schemes, and from

the attendant diversion of CTF's assets or entitlements. |

261. By reason of the forcgoiné, the Marriott Defendahts have violated 18
US.C. § 1962(a). | |

262. The Marriott Defendants damaged CTF by using the illegal proceeds from -

their racketeering activity to expand Enterptises I's and [II's self-dealing transactions and to

 broaden their purchasing program, by procuring secret kickbacks from vendors, instead of

procuring market-based contracts.

263.  Accordingly, CTF seeks an award of t;eble damages, the costs of this

o litigation, and reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by the federal RICO statute, 18 U.S.C.

§ 1964(c).
‘COUNT X
For Violation of RICO, Section 1962(d)
(Against All Defendants)

264. CTF repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 to 263 as if fully set forth herein.

265.  Section 1962(d) of RICO prohibits a person, as defined in 18 U.S.C.
§ 1961, from conspiring with others to violate other sections of RICO. The Defendants are

"persons” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961.

266. It was an object of the conspiracy that the Defendants, and others known

*and unknown, including vehdors of goods and services, would violate RICO, as alleged in

Counts XV to XVIIL.
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' 267. The Defendants and Avendra reached agrecment with other persons,
known and unknown, and including, among other, numerous vendors, to commit multxple acts éf )
mail fraud, wire fraud, and commercial bribery in furtherance of the scheme to defraud CTF.
268. The Defendants and Avencira agreed to pa'rticipate in such-racketeering

activity and in the affairs of the Enterprises knowing the nature of the conspiracy and that the

‘ conspiracy extended beyond themselves to include vendors.

269. In furtherance of the conspxracy, the Defendants commxtted numerous
oven acts, mcludxng those alleged in paragraphs 237 through 247 above. A
270. C"I'F was injured by the conspiracy to violate RICO alleged herein.
'»271. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have violatea 18US.C.§ »l91.52(d),
and CTF is entitled to an award of ﬁ;ble damages therefor, the cost of this litig_ation, and

reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by the federal RICO statute, 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).

COUNT X1X
For Violations of Robinson-

Patman Act, Section 2(c)
(Against All Defendants)
272. CTF repeats and realleges each and cvcry allcgatxon contained in
paragraphs 110271 as if fully set forth herein,

273, Section 2(c) of the Robinson-Patman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 12 et seq,, provides,

in relevant part, as follows: -

It shall be unlawful for any person engaged-in commerce, in the course of such
commerce, to pay or grant, or to receive or accept, anything of value as a commis-
sion, brokerage, or other compensation, or any allowance or discount in Lieu
thereof, except for services rendered in connection with the sale or purchase of
goods, wares, or merchandise, either to the other party to such transaction or to an
agent, representative, or other intermediary therein where such intermediary is
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acting i fact for or in behalf, or is subject to the direct or indirect control, of any
party to such transaction other than the person by whom such compcnsauon is so
granted or paxd

274.  Defendants engage (or have engagéd) in commerce by, among other

- things, «establishing national and regional contracts for the provision of goods, wares, and

metchéndise to hotels owned; operated or franchised by Marriott and the other Founders,
throughout the United States and its territories. |

275.  The Marriott Defendants, acting as agents for CTF, were authorized and
empowered under the Agreements to purchase certain goods, wares, and merchandise on behalf .
of CTF-owned hotels. Marriott utilized Avendra to effect such purchasiﬁg on behalf of CTF-
owned hoteis. : | |

276. - ';I’l'xc Marriott Defendants, directly and together with Avendra, have entered
into exclusive and/or preferred contracts with particular vendors to provide goods, ms, and.
merchandise to Marriott owned, op’é_;ated or fr%nchised hotels, including the Hotels o@ned by

CTF. Iu this connection, Defendants, though Avendra, ha\}e solicited and accepted so-cal}ed

"Sponsorship Funds,” payments by vendors in exchange for the opportunity to access and market

goods, war&. and merchandise to the Hotels and to execute agreements to scll goods, wares and

merchandise to the Hotels.

277. These Sponsorship Funds are acknowledged by the PSA and are paid over

to or for Defendants', or their affiliates’ benefit. In fact, these Sponsorshxp Funds s0 established

are kickbacks whxch have not been paid for services rendered in connection thh the sale or

- purchase of goods wares, or merchandise by tbe Defendants on behalfof CTF.

278. The Defendants have sought and required the payment of such kickbacks
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deliberately and'bave concealed their exisﬁence from CTF.

- 279.  CTF has been injured and may continue to be injured by these acts
because it is restricted in its choice of and access to independent vendors and consequently has
paid prices for goods, wares, and merchandise tﬁat were higher than it would bave paid in the .

absence of Defendants' kickback scheme.

280. Defendants’ kickback scheme is per se unlawful and constitutes per se
competi_tive injury. . N |
281. Moreover, CTF has incurred additional direct éompetitive injury because .
the Hotels are in the same busiriess as, or are m coinpetition with, other hotels owned, oWed
or franchised by the Marriott Defendams CTF is competitively injured because inter alia, its
Hotels mcun-ed higher punchasmg costs than did other hotcls owned, operated or franchised by
Marriott for goods, wares, and merchandxse procured by Defendants on CTF's bcha.lf
' 282. By reason of the foregoing, _the Defendants have wo}ated Secnon 2(c) of
the Robinson-Patman Act, and CTF is entitled to treble damages therefor, the costs of this
litigation, attorneys’ fees and prejudgment Vimm'est, pursﬁant to 15US.C. § iS(a).
For Violations of R_obinson- .
283.  CTF repeats and rcallégés eacﬂ ;nd evefy allggation contained in
paragraphs 1 mézasif_mnysafonhhmm |
284.  The Marriott Defendants, acting as agents for CTF, were authorized and

empowered to purchase goods, wares, and merchandise on behalf of CTF ~owned hotels. Prior to
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the formation of Avendra, Marriott utilized its divisions and affiliates (including MarketPlace) to

conduct purchasing on behalf of CTF-owned hotels.

285.  Prior to the formation of Avendra in Jamvary 2001, and uzitil Avendra
‘became. operational in around March 2001, the Marriot Defeadants entered iato exclusive and/or
preferred comracts- with particular vendors to provide goods, wares, and merchandise to Marriott
owned, operated or franchised botels, including the Hotels owned by CTF. ;n this connection,

the Marriott Defendants solicited and accepted so-called "Sponsorship Funds,” payments by

the Hotels and to execute agreeménts to sell goods, wares and merchandise to the Hotels.

286.  For the same reasons set forth in paragraphs 274 and 277 to0 279, these

' Sponsorshp Funds comprised illegal kickbacks in violation of the section 2(c) of the Robinson-

Patman Act, causing CTF competitive injury in the same manner as referred to in paragraphs 280

and 281. CTF is entitled to treble damages therefor, the costs of this litigation, ézttoméys' fees

- and prejudgment interest, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 15(a).

COUNT XX1

(Agamst the Marriott Defendants).

287. CT'F repeats and mlleges each and every allegation contained in _ “

 paragraphs 1 to 286 as if ﬁ.zny set forth herein,

288.  On April 8, 2002, in direct response to CTF's notice of default, and in

order to attempt to deprive CTF of its nght toa Judxcml foram, Marriott anempted to commcnce

*an arbitration before the Amencan Arbmatxon Association, sxmng in Washmgton (the "AAA

Arbitration™), naming CTF as a co-respondent.
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Defendants: .
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289.  In their demand for arbitration in the AAA Arbitration, the Marriott

a disphte CTF's position vis-a-vis the A/V Fee and seeks declaratory and other
relief in 'support‘of its own positioh;
b. dispute whether CTF is entitled to an audit in the manner CTF has sought (and as
further described above). | | |
290. Inthe AAA Arbitration, Marriott further alleges that CTF i bound by 2n
arbitration ngteement between HPI and RHG (the "HPVRHG Agreement"), to which CTF is not -

a party, goveming a separate set of hotels owned by HPI. Marriott maintains that the 1999

Agreement requires that CTF submit to arbitration pursuant to the terms of the HPVRHG

Agreement desplte the direction in section IX.X of the 1999 Agreement that disputes arising
under the Management Agreement "shall be subJect to the dlspute tesolunon provisions in the
[Management] Agmement" (which contams no arbitration provision) and the express disclaimer
in the 1999 Agreement stating that "[n]othing [t]herein is intended to require arbitration ot' any
dispute under the [Management] Agreement or to limit an;t right -any party may have to proceed
in federal or state court on any dispute under the [Management] Agreement."

291. Marriott's meluslon of CTF asa co-respondent in the AAA Arbxtranon is |
therefore an improper attempt to circmnvent the 1999 Agreement's express reservation of CTF's
right to litigate disputes in federal or state court, and represents a breach of the Agreements
Unless Mamott is enjoined from improperly attempnng to force arbm'anon of its dlsputes thh
CTF in the AAA Arbitration, CTF wxll be irreparably damaged by the loss of its right to a
judicial forum. CTF has no adequate remedy at law.
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292.  CTF therefore seeks a declaration that it is not required to submit to the

AAA Arbitration and an order enjoining the Marriott Defendants from pursuing claims against it

in the AAA Arbitration and/or staying the AAA Arbitration as regards any claim by Marriott
-aga'mst CTF. »
WHEREFORE,

Plaintiff CTF respectfully requests that this Court grgnt relief;

(@  ordering the Marriott Defendants to make avaflable for examination, audit,

mspecnon copying and transcnptxon

i. all documents and other mformauon requ&sted to in CTF's February 6,
2002 audit request; and/or

il all such other books of account and other records as CTF and its desig-

nated auditors may request reflecting: (A) the results of the Hotels; and
(B) all Unrestricted Allowances (as defined in the Agreements) as have -
been received by Mamott

(b)  declaring that the Marriott Defendants have committed material breaches
of the Management Agreement and have failed to cure said breaches;
()  declaring that CTF may rightfully exercise its right to tefminate the

Agreements, without cost or penalty, and that upon exercise of such right, CTF is entitled to

possession of the Hotels (including its books and records) and the Mafriott Defendants must

leave the premises immediately; -

(d) orderihg a full a;id complete accounting of all financial matters relating to
the Hotels; |

(e ' awarding CTF compensatory damages in an amount to be determined at

trial, together with prejudgment interest at the maximum rate allowabie by law;
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| (ﬂ imposing punitive damages against Defendants for their bad faith breaches

of fiduciary duty and fraudulent conduct;

(f)  entering judgment under Counts XVI, XVII and XVIII against all

Defendants for RICO damages and awarding Plaintiff treble damages, togeiher with all reason- .

able attorney’s fees incurred in pursuing this claim; o . .
(g) imposing a constructive trust on any and all profits, remuneration and

other consideration oBtained by Defendants and t}?eir affiliates in violation of their ﬁduciary

duties to C"I'F‘; |

(h)  ordering Defendants to disgorge any profits or other consideration

received M6ugh improper self-dealing;
| ()  preliminarily and permanently enjoining the Mariott Defendants from
pursuing claims against it in the AAA Arbitration; »

)] preliminé.rily and mmﬂy stayingv the AAA Arbiu'ation as regards any
clgim by Marriott against CTF, under section 10 Del. C. § 5 703(b) and/or this Court'é inherent
jurisdictionﬁ ' | ‘

'(k) declaring that CTF is not required ‘to submit to the AAA Arbitration and
that no arbitration clauée exists between Marriott and CTF; |

) awarding CTF its costs and expenses in this éction, including réasonable
attorneys' and experts' fees; and »

(m) granting such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. '
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DE D

. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 38(b), Plaintiff demands a jury trial of all issues so |

triable.

Of Counsel:

Jonathan J. Lerner

Maura B. Grinalds

Timothy G. Nelson
SKADDEN, ARPS, SLATE,

. MEAGHER & FLOMLLP

4 Times Square

- New York, New York 10022

DATED: April 12,2002
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Edward/P. Welch (I.D. #0671)

Douglas E. McCann (I.D. # 3852)
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